West Bath Planning Board Meeting Minutes
Tuesday, September 14, 2021

Planning Board: Darlene Estabrook, Chair - Present

Gerry Mitchell, Vice Chair - Present
Jeremie Whorff - Present
Jay Paris - Present
Jim Williams - Present

Select Board Liaison: Suzanne Andresen - Present

Staff:

Public:

Jonathan Beane, Code Enforcement Officer
Karly Perry, Town Clerk

Tim and Debbie Vigue, Derek Dudzic

The West Bath Planning Board held a meeting on Tuesday, September 14, 2021, at 6:00 pm,

at the West Bath Fire Hall, 192 State Road, West Bath, Maine.

CALL TO ORDER:

Ms. Estabrook called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm.

ATTENDANCE AND ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM:
A quorum was established since at least three members were present.
Planning Board members introduced themselves and stated their names for the record.

AMENDMENTS TO AGENDA:

Ms. Estabrook moved that approval of minutes be moved to after public information and
comment permanently, seconded by Mr. Mitchell. Planning Board unanimously approved.

APPLICANTS:

1. Tim Vigue

Non-conforming Expansion
125 Rock Haven Dr
Map U16 Lot 16

The applicant presented plans to expand his cottage. Mr. Vigue stated that 1/3 of his basement will
remain a crawl space, with the majority of the expansion in the living area of the cottage.

Ms. Estabrook questioned the dimensions and calculations provided which should show that the
expansion does not exceed 30%. The applicant did not have a worksheet, only final numbers, so
Board members worked to confirm that calculations were correct. Ms. Estabrook confirmed that
the basement will not be expanded to full dimensions of the living space. Mr. Vigue then presented
plans showing the footprint for both the original building and addition. He then confirmed that the
expansion is to the road-facing side, not the shoreland-facing side and that the setback from the
road to the expansion is approximately 80’. The Board continued to calculate the total volume of
the structure. Mr. Vigue then presented a worksheet. The Board determined that the worksheet was
not consistent with building measurements and that more information was required for approval.

Mr. Vigue recommended that the Land Use Ordinance be amended to adopt the new DEP Chapter
1000, noting that it would be more cost effective for residents as well as for the Town.

Mr. Vigue asked if he would be permitted to receive a building permit for the foundation prior to
Planning Board approval. Ms. Estabrook stated that building permits are the scope of Code
Enforcement and not determined by the Planning Board.



Planning Board Meeting Minutes
Tuesday, September 14, 2021

The Board went on to discuss the possibility of holding a special meeting before the regular October
meeting to expedite the process for the applicant since the building season is short. Mr. Vigue
thanked the Board for their time and stated that he would try to make the necessary adjustments in
order to present to the Board prior to the next regular meeting if possible.

Derek Dudzic/Whiskeag Creek, LLC
Site Development — Preliminary Review
Wing Farm Road

Map RO1 Lot 1-7

Mr. Dudzic presented plans to the Board for a new building in the Wing Farm business park,
including plans for the entire subdivision with existing buildings in addition to the proposed
structure.

Mr. Williams asked the purpose of the building. Mr. Dudzic stated that he has purchased Kennebec
Marine and that the building will be used for boat storage and dock construction.

Ms. Estabrook pointed out that the lot boundaries are angled to the road and therefore the proposed
building will not meet all setbacks. Mr. Dudzic agreed to reduce the structure in order to conform
to setbacks.

Mr. Williams asked for more information on the structure. Mr. Dudzic described the building as
prefabricated wood frame with metal shell, similar in style to his previous project in the Wing Farm,
then went on to describe lighting as presented to the Board in his application. He then stated the
overall building height to be 29° 4.5”, which CEO Beane confirmed is within the height restrictions.
Mr. Williams confirmed that the height is measured from the ground and not the foundation (top
of concrete bump walls).

Ms. Estabrook stated that this is a new business on an undeveloped lot within a subdivision, and
that preliminary and final site plan review are required. Ms. Estabrook asked the Board if they
would like to perform a site visit, to which the Board unanimously agreed to waive a site visit.

Ms. Estabrook stated that the Planning Board has the option hold a Public Hearing. Discussion
followed as to whether a Public Hearing is necessary as Mr. Dudzic owns all but one of the
surrounding properties.

Ms. Estabrook moved to waive a public hearing based on the location of the project in the
Wing Farm Business Park and which applicant owns and that the remaining lots are
currently vacant. Further motioning that the one abutter, Shirley Swift-Vogel, be notified of
the next meeting as well as the project, seconded by Mr. Whorff. Planning Board
unanimously approved.

Ms. Estabrook asked Town Clerk Karly Perry to notify Ms. Swift-Vogel. Mr. Dudzic further
detailed that the construction will be taking place within reasonable hours with no work conducted
on nights or weekends. Mr. Dudzic then confirmed that Ms. Swift-VVogel may reach out to him with
any questions or concerns.

The Board proceeded to review site plan requirements including name and address of applicant,
map and lot number, high-intensity soils map, public water, and sewer utilities. The roads, public
water, sewer, and storm drain are in place from development of the subdivision.

Ms. Estabrook asked the applicant if he had a more detailed building design showing height of
structure. Mr. Dudzic stated that detailed plans for the building are not available until purchased
and that he would not be purchasing the building without Planning Board approval. He then went
on to describe the building as having a wood frame with metal walls, similar to his existing building

Page 2 of 5



Planning Board Meeting Minutes
Tuesday, September 14, 2021

across the street. The Board went on to discuss the lot sketch noting the location of the entrance
and parking. Mr. Dudzic referenced a document within his application which addressed grading
and stated that the building front is approximately 50°-55 from the road.

Ms. Estabrook questioned fire truck access around the building as the layout does not leave room
for circulation. CEO Beane stated that as the Fire Chief he is comfortable with the property layout.
Mr. Dudzic further stated that the building will have sprinklers as well.

Ms. Estabrook asked if there would be any equipment creating noise at the business. Mr. Dudzic
stated that the only onsite machinery of note would be diesel trucks.

Ms. Estabrook went on to review stormwater design which was established and approved by the
DEP when the subdivision was created. She reminded Mr. Dudzic that any changes made during
site construction from the DEP approved plans would require DEP approval.

Ms. Estabrook confirmed that there would be no outdoor storage, to which Mr. Dudzic stated that
floats would be stored off-site.

Mr. Paris asked if marine paint or other possibly hazardous material would be used. Mr. Dudzic
stated that floats would be built using pressure-treated wood and not painted. He also stated that all
hardware would be galvanized steel.

He then went on to note the dumpster for solid waste disposal and an on-site fire hydrant. Ms.
Estabrook asked if the applicant has discussed the project with the Bath Water District. Mr. Dudzic
stated that he has not contacted Bath Water District directly, however he has confirmed that the site
water supply has the capacity to handle the project.

Mr. Dudzic went on to discuss the project timeline, with a projected groundbreaking as soon as
possible this fall. The building is scheduled for delivery in January 2022 and the forecasted move-
in date for the new building is June 2022.

Mr. Paris noted that there are no calculations for lot area coverage, which Ms. Estabrook confirmed
would be necessary for the final plan. Discussion followed regarding lot coverage as defined in the
Land Use Ordinance. Ms. Estabrook confirmed that lot coverage requirements were defined on
each lot when the Wing Farm business park was originally approved.

Ms. Estabrook stated that the applicant will need to provide a revised site plan sketch showing the
revised building location. Also required is a building sketch with dimensions and height.

Ms. Estabrook moved to grant preliminary site plan approval, seconded by Mr. Mitchell.
Planning Board unanimously approved.

PUBLIC INFORMATION AND COMMENT
None

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

1. Mr. Mitchell moved to approve the minutes for May 10, 2021, seconded by Mr. Whorff.
Planning Board unanimously approved.

2. Mr. Whorff moved to approve the minutes for July 13, 2021, seconded by Mr. Mitchell.
Planning Board unanimously approved.

3. Mr. Whorff moved to approve the minutes for August 10, 2021, seconded by Mr. Mitchell.

Page 3 of 5



Planning Board Meeting Minutes
Tuesday, September 14, 2021

Ms. Estabrook recommended the following amendments:

- Page 2, paragraph 2: That the period after meeting after meeting be removed, and that the final
line be amended to read “Board to attend and ask questions at the meeting”.

- Page 2, paragraph 7: That a period be added after relevance.

- Page 2, paragraph 8: That the final line be amended to read “line to be altered should be
sufficient and that a full survey of both lots is not required”.
Page 3, paragraph 1: That the second line be amended to read “Municipal Officer Andresen
stated that all ordinance changes have legal review.”; and that the fifth line be amended to read
“action.” With “to which” removed.

Mr. Whorff moved to approve the minutes for August 10, 2021, as amended, seconded by Mr.
Mitchell. Planning Board unanimously approved.

VII.  OTHER BUSINESS

1. Ms. Estabrook reported on the Select Board meeting on Thursday, September 2, 2021. Ms.
Estabrook, Mr. Paris, and Mr. Whorff attended the meeting where MCEDD representative Max
Johnston spoke on working with the Town to develop the Comprehensive Plan. Ms. Estabrook
expressed disappointment that Mr. Johnstone spoke mostly to the Comprehensive Plan and was not
prepared to discuss the Land Use Ordinance, which MCEDD will be assisting the Town in updating
as well. Discussion followed as to how documents would be composed and whether MCEDD or
committees would ultimately be responsible for writing the documents. Municipal Officer
Andresen added that changes to the Comprehensive Plan are scheduled to be finalized by June 2023
and that MCEDD is planning to assist in recruiting members for the Comprehensive Plan
Committee. Discussion followed on whether it is best to work on the Comprehensive Plan and Land
Use Ordinances and deadlines be staggered. Ms. Estabrook stated that she would be attending the
Select Board meeting on Thursday, September 23, 2021, when Mr. Johnstone returns to discuss
proposal to update the Land Use Ordinance. She also stated her preference that documents be
staggered and asked the Board if they had any other concerns that they would like for her to discuss
at the Select Board meeting.

Mr. Paris noted that members of the public had requested deliverables at the meeting and that he
suggested MCEDD provide the Town with an approve plan from a similar community. Mr. Paris
also suggested that there are many ordinance changes to be made and he preferred that those be
reviewed by Planning Board prior to MCEDD commencing with updates.

Discussion followed on ordinance changes previously presented to the Select Board. The Board
then expressed the need of Select Board to employ outside entities is offensive and implies a lack
of confidence in the Planning Board by the Select Board.

The Board also discussed the number of meetings they would be able to commit to, based on current
and seasonal commitments.

Mr. Whorff and Mr. Mitchell agreed that they could not commit to additional meetings at this time.
Ms. Estabrook proposed that the Board submit documents to MCEDD with suggested edits.
Municipal Officer Andresen suggested an initial one-time meeting with Mr. Johnstone to verbalize
concerns prior to working on the ordinance.

1. The Board discussed a potential appointment to the Planning Board. Ms. Estabrook asked if any of
the Board members knew Sandra Basgall. The Board urged Municipal Officer Andresen to
communicate to the Select Board the importance of including the Planning Board on appointment
decisions. Ms. Estabrook noted the comment made by Municipal Officer Hennessey of “a warm
body willing is all it needs” when asked about Ms. Basgall’s experience is not appropriate.

Page 4 of 5



Planning Board Meeting Minutes
Tuesday, September 14, 2021

2. Ms. Estabrook stated that she has not yet had a chance to make corrections to the draft non-
conforming expansion application but will have it soon.
VIIlI.  SET NEXT MEETING DATE: OCTOBER 12, 2021
IX. ADJOURNMENT

Mr. Mitchell moved to adjourn, seconded by Mr. Whorff.
Meeting adjourned by unanimous acclamation at 8:59 pm.

A true, attested copy

Karly A. Perry, Town Clerk

Page 5 of 5



